
Regional Transportation Planning Agency - Local Transportation Commission
Monterey County Service Authority for Freeways & Expressways

Monterey County Regional Development Impact Fee Joint Powers Agency
Email: info@tamcmonterey.org

BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Wednesday, August 3, 2022

**6:00 PM**
 

REMOTE CONFERENCING ONLY
There will be NO physical loca�on of the mee�ng.

Please see all the special mee�ng instruc�ons at the end of this agenda
 

Join mee)ng online at:
h,ps://us02web.zoom.us/j/990276709?pwd=QXBRbWF6ajh6M3dOR3hhbGloRlhRZz09

OR
By teleconference at: +1 669 900 6833

 
Mee)ng ID: 990 276 709

Password: 352877

Any person who has a ques�on concerning an item on this agenda may call the Agency
Secretary to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on the agenda.

1. ROLL CALL

Call to order and self-introduc�ons. Commi�ee bylaws specify that a quorum shall
consist of a majority (7) of the number of vo�ng memberships actually filled at that
�me (13); the existence of any vacancies shall not be counted for purposes of
establishing a quorum.  If you are unable to a�end, please contact the Transporta�on
Agency.  Your courtesy to the other Commi�ee members to assure a quorum is
appreciated.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any member of the public may address the Commi�ee on any item not on the
agenda but within the jurisdic�on of the Commi�ee. Under this item, each member of

Page 1 of 42

file:///C:/Windows/TEMP/info@tamcmonterey.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/990276709?pwd=QXBRbWF6ajh6M3dOR3hhbGloRlhRZz09


the public is allowed three minutes to address concerns. Comments in items on this
agenda may be given when that agenda item is discussed. Persons who wish to
address the Commi�ee for public comment or on an item on the agenda are
encouraged to submit comments in wri�ng to Maria at maria@tamcmonterey.org by
5:00 pm the Monday before the mee�ng, and such comments will be distributed to
the Commi�ee before the mee�ng.

3. BEGINNING OF CONSENT AGENDA

Approve the staff recommenda�ons for items listed below by majority vote with one
mo�on.  Any member may pull an item off the Consent Agenda to be moved to the
end of the CONSENT AGENDA for discussion and ac�on.

3.1 APPROVE minutes of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili�es Advisory Commi�ee
mee�ng of June 1, 2022.

- Mon)el
The dra� minutes of the June 1, 2022 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili�es Advisory
Commi ee mee�ng are a ached for review.

.
3.2 RECEIVE a report on California Vehicle Code 21202.

- Strause
On June 1, 2022, the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili�es Commi ee unanimously
approved a mo�on reques�ng Transporta�on Agency staff to provide an update on
“the status of the California vehicle codes ride to the right law.” This report outlines
staff’s findings in accordance with that request.

.
3.3 APPROVE applica�on for Ac�ve Transporta�on Support Grant funds for Na�vidad

Hospital to receive 2 bike racks and 1 bike locker.
- Guther

Approval by the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili�es Advisory Commi ee is required for
applicants to the Ac�ve Transporta�on Support Program to be awarded grant
funding.

.

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

4. RECEIVE an introduc�on to the new Caltrans District 5 Bicycle Coordinator. 
- Strause

At the June 2022 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili�es Advisory Commi ee mee�ng,
Commi ee members requested Transporta�on Agency staff to invite the new

Page 2 of 42



Caltrans District 5 Bicycle Coordinator to a future mee�ng. The Senior Planner
responsible for Complete Streets at the Caltrans District 5 office is Rawan Al-Jamal
and she will discuss the Complete Streets Ac�on Plan released in July 2022.

.
5. RECEIVE update on Monterey County's Davis Road Bridge Replacement and Road

Widening Project.  
- Enrique Saavedra (County of Monterey)

The Davis Road Bridge Replacement and Road Widening Project consists of
widening a key regional route that connects the two largest popula�on centers in
the County. Davis Road experiences daily conges�on and does not have exis�ng
bicycle facili�es. The Davis Road project creates an alterna�ve transporta�on link
between the City of Salinas and the City of Marina by widening the roadway and
providing 8-foot bike lanes. The project also replaces a low-water crossing with a
bridge that provides an all-weather crossing to maintain traffic flow on an
important mul�modal corridor and allow for planned future rapid transit service.
County staff will provide a status and schedule update on the project to construct a
new bridge over the low-water crossing.

.

6. ANNOUNCEMENTS and/or COMMENTS

7. ADJOURN
 

Page 3 of 42



ANNOUNCEMENTS
Next Commi�ee mee�ng:

Wednesday, September 7, 2022 at 6pm

Important Mee�ng Informa�on
 
Remote Mee�ngs: On March 12, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Execu�ve Order N-25-20,
which enhanced State and Local Governments ability to respond to COVID-19 Pandemic
based on Guidance for Gatherings issued by the California Department of Public Health.
The Execu�ve Order specifically allowed local legisla�ve bodies to hold mee�ngs via
teleconference and to make mee�ngs accessible electronically, in order to protect public
health. That order expired on September 30, 2021. Governor Newsom has now signed AB
361, and the TAMC Board of Directors approved a resolu�on to enact AB 361 on
September 22, 2021. This legisla�on permits teleconferencing for Brown Act mee�ngs
during a state of emergency. Thus, TAMC mee�ngs will convene remotely, un�l further
no�ce. For remote mee�ngs, the public is strongly encouraged to use the Zoom app for
best recep�on. Prior to the mee�ng, par�cipants should download the Zoom app at:
h�ps://zoom.us/download. A link to simplified instruc�on for the use of the Zoom app is:
h�ps://blog.zoom.us/wordpress/2018/07/03/video-communica�ons-best-prac�ce-guide/.
 
Remote Mee�ng Public Comment: Due to current circumstances, there may be limited
opportunity to provide verbal comments during remote mee�ngs. Persons who wish to
address the Commi�ee for public comment or on an item on the agenda are encouraged
to submit comments in wri�ng to maria@tamcmonterey.org by 5:00pm the Monday before
the mee�ng. Such comments will be distributed to the Commi�ee before the mee�ng.
Members of the public par�cipa�ng by Zoom are instructed to be on mute during the
proceedings and to speak only when public comment is allowed, aJer reques�ng and
receiving recogni�on from the Chair.
 
Agenda Packet and Documents: Any person who has a ques�on concerning an item on this
agenda may call or email the Agency office to make inquiry concerning the nature of the
item described on the agenda. Complete agenda packets are on display online at the
Transporta�on Agency for Monterey County website. Documents rela�ng to an item on
the open session that are distributed to the Commi�ee less than 72 hours prior to the
mee�ng shall be available for public review at the Agency website. Agency contact
informa�on is as follows:
 

Transporta�on Agency for Monterey County
www.tamcmonterey.org

Office is closed an all employees are working remotely un�l further no�ce
TEL: 831-775-0903

EMAIL: info@tamcmonterey.org

Page 4 of 42

https://zoom.us/download
https://blog.zoom.us/wordpress/2018/07/03/video-communications-best-practice-guide/
mailto:maria@tamcmonterey.org


 
Agenda Items: The agenda will be prepared by Agency staff and will close at noon nine (9)
working days before the regular mee�ng. Any member of the Commi�ee may request in
wri�ng an item to appear on the agenda. The request shall be made by the agenda
deadline and any suppor�ng papers must be furnished by that �me or be readily available.
 
Alterna�ve Agenda Format and Auxiliary Aids: If requested, the agenda shall be made
available in appropriate alterna�ve formats to persons with a disability, as required by
Sec�on 202 of the Americans with Disabili�es Act of 1990 (42 USC Sec. 12132), and the
federal rules and regula�ons adopted in implementa�on thereof. Individuals reques�ng a
disability-related modifica�on or accommoda�on, including auxiliary aids or services, may
contact Transporta�on Agency staff at 831-775-0903. Auxiliary aids or services include
wheelchair accessible facili�es, sign language interpreters, Spanish language interpreters,
and printed materials in large print, Braille or on disk. These requests may be made by a
person with a disability who requires a modifica�on or accommoda�on in order to
par�cipate in the public mee�ng and should be made at least 72 hours before the mee�ng.
All reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate the request.

CORRESPONDENCE, MEDIA CLIPPINGS, & REPORTS

Correspondence

Media Clipping - No items this month.

Reports - No items this month.

Page 5 of 42



Agenda I tem 3.1

     
TRANSPORTATI ON AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

Memorandum
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili"es Advisory Commi%ee
From: Maria Mon"el, Administra"ve Assistant
Mee
ng Date: August 3, 2022
Subject: Dra� June 1, 2022 Minutes

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
APPROVE minutes of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili"es Advisory Commi%ee mee"ng of June 1, 2022.

SUMMARY:
The dra- minutes of the June 1, 2022 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili"es Advisory Commi%ee mee"ng are a%ached for
review.

ATTACHMENTS:

Dra- June BPC Minutes

Page 6 of 42



   

 TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY (TAMC) 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee 

 

Draft Minutes of June 1, 2022 
Held remotely via Zoom due to COVID‐19 pandemic 

 

  Voting Members 
OCT 
21 

NOV 
21 

JAN 
22 

FEB 
22 

MAR 
22 

APR 
22 

MAY 
22 

JUN 
22 

Eric Petersen, District 1  P  P  P  A  P  P  E  P 

Pete Scudder – District 2 
(David Tavarez) 

P  E  P  P  P  P  E  E 

Mike Novo – District 3, Chair  P  P  P  P  E  P  P  P 

Jeff Wriedt, District 4 
(Frank Henderson) 

P  P  P  P  P  P  P  E 

Martin Wegenstein, District 5, Vice Chair 
(Jeff Lindenthal) 

P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P 

D. L. Johnson, Carmel‐By‐The Sea  P  P  P  A  P  P  P  P 

Celine Pinet, Del Rey Oaks  P  P  E  P  P  P  P  P 

Gonzales ‐ Vacant  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Ernest Gallardo, Greenfield  P  P  P  P  P  E  P  E 

Michael LeBarre, King City   P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P 

Vacant, Marina  P  P    ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Gino Garcia, Monterey 
(Abby Ostovar) 

P  P  P  P  P  P  E  P 

Vacant, Pacific Grove 
(Jung Hwa Kim)  

P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P(A) 

Chris Flescher, Salinas 
(Mark Lasnik) 

P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P 

Elizabeth (Libby) Sofer, Sand City  P  P  P  P  P  P    P 

Ralph Wege, Seaside 
(Jan Valencia) 

P  P  P  P(A)  P  P  P  E 

Soledad ‐ Vacant  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Sloan Campi, Monterey Salinas Transit  P  P  P  P  P  P  P  E 

Vera Noghera, Velo Club of Monterey 
(Alex Capelli) 

P  ‐  P  E  P(A)  P  P  P 

Grant Leonard, N. County Recreation & Park 
District  

P  P  P  P  P  E  E  P 

Vacant ‐ Salinas Public Works  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Vacant – Monterey County Public Works   ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Caltrans ‐ District 5  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Miranda Taylor, AMBAG 
(Will Condon)  

P  P  P  P  P  P  P  E 

Matthew McCluney ‐ CSUMB  P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P 
E – Excused  VC – Video Conference 
P(A) – Alternate    TC – Teleconference  
A ‐ Absent 

               

   

Page 7 of 42



Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Minutes of June 1, 2022 
Page 2  

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Committees/Bike & Pedestrian/2022/06 June/BPC Draft June 1, 2022 
MINUTES.docx 

TRANSPORTATION AGENCY STAFF  OCT 
21 

NOV 
21 

JAN 
22 

FEB 
22 

MAR 
22 

APR 
22 

MAY 
22 

JUN 
22 

Todd Muck, Executive Director  E  P  P  E  E  E  E  E 

Ariana Green, Principal Transportation 
Planner 

P  P  P  E  E  E  P  E 

Maria Montiel, Administrative 
Assistant  

P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P 

Mike Zeller, Director of Programing 
and Project Delivery 

E  E  E  E  E  E  E  E 

Laurie Williamson, Senior Engineer  E  E  E  E  E  E  E  E 

Christina Watson, Director of Planning  E  P  E  P  P  E  P  P 

Janneke Strause, Transportation 
Planner 

    P  P  P  P  P  P 

Aaron Hernandez, Assistant 
Transportation Planner 

P  P  P  P  P  E  E  E 

Alissa Guther, Assistant 
Transportation Planner 

  P  P  E  E  E  P  P 

Doug Bilse, Principal Engineer            P  E  E 
   

  OTHERS PRESENT:  

  Mari Lynch  Public  Hans Hoffman  Public 
  Matt Hess  Public  Robin Lee  Public 
  Jessica Madueño  California Highway 

Patrol 
Azusena Ledesma 
Calderon 

Public 

   
1.  Chair Mike Novo called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. A quorum was established, and Maria 

Montiel took roll call. 
   
2.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

  Azusena Ledesma Calderon, member of public announced that a bike repair shop is scheduled in 
Greenfield June 4th. 
 
Robin Lee, member of the public asked for information on the bike path on Davis Road 
Improvement project. Janneke Strause asked to email her the request. 
 
Mari Lynch, member of Public announced that at bikemonterey.org you can find information on 
the South County repair shops and other bike related information. 

 

 

3.  BEGINNING OF CONSENT AGENDA  
M/S/C  Wegenstein/Petersen/unanimous 

Abstain: Gino Garcia 
3.1  Approved minutes of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee meeting of 

May 4, 2022. 
3.2  Approved applications to the Bicycle Secure Program to award bike racks. 
  END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
  

Page 8 of 42



Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Minutes of June 1, 2022 
Page 3  

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Committees/Bike & Pedestrian/2022/06 June/BPC Draft June 1, 2022 
MINUTES.docx 

  
 

4.  CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL REPORT ON BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN CRASHES 

  The Committee received a report on bicycle and pedestrian collisions from Officer Jessica 
Madueño, Public Information Officer for the California Highway Patrol. 
 
Officer Jessica Madueño presented on the bicycle crashes during January 1st – May 30th. She 
went over the seven bicycle crashes that occurred in Monterey County. She noted that one was 
not involving a vehicle and six occurred with a vehicle. In conclusion Ms. Madueño reported that 
having a great relationship with the District and County Road engineering representatives to 
provide suggestions and a full report for the intersection.  
 
The Committee had the following comments and input on the California Highway Patrol Report: 

 Consider contacting the City PD for their crash history data 

 Officer Madueño will provide the previous six‐month crash history for comparison 

 Officer Madueño noted that SWITRS has close call or other types of collisions 

 Officer Madueño will provide the last 3‐year information on how many bicycles at fault 
or vehicles at fault data by the end of June 
 

The Committee asked to consider the following for future meeting presentations from the 
California Highway Patrol: 

 Statistics on the 3‐feet for safety 

 Officer training information 

 Public records request on California Highway Patrol vs Bicyclist  
   

5.  FORT ORD REGIONAL TRAIL AND GREENWAY UPDATE 

  The Committee received an update on Fort Ord Regional Trail and Greenway projects in 
progress. 
 
Janneke Strause, Transportation Planner reported that the Fort Ord Regional Trail & Greenway 
(FORTAG) project is a proposed 28‐mile continuous 12‐ft wide paved bicycle and pedestrian trail 
with an open‐space buffer on both sides. She noted that FORTAG is part of a larger effort to 
connect communities in and around the former Fort Ord to each other and to education, 
employment, community, and open space. She also noted that it will connect to the existing 
Monterey Bay Sanctuary Scenic Trail and will provide connections to unpaved trails in the Fort 
Ord National Monument. 
 
Committee member DL Johnson noted that a lot of comments on the Next‐Door application and 
expressed that the video stimulation would have benefit the community. 
 
Hans Hoffman noted that the video shows the Del Rey Oaks segment so flat and seems 
misleading and suggested going through the park. He also mentioned that the construction and 
who is going to maintain the boardwalk is going to be discussed. 
 
Mari Lynch suggested to avoid showing pedestrians on cell phones on any video stimulation.  
 

Page 9 of 42



Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Minutes of June 1, 2022 
Page 4  

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Committees/Bike & Pedestrian/2022/06 June/BPC Draft June 1, 2022 
MINUTES.docx 

   

6.  CALL FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M/S/C 
 
 
 
 
M/S/C 
 
 
 
 

M/S/C 
 

The Committee received a presentation on planned future agenda items for the Transportation 
Agency for Monterey County Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee and provided 
input on future agenda items for Transportation Agency Staff to pursue. 
 
Janneke Strause, Transportation Planner reported that Transportation Agency staff have drafted 
a proposed Annual Workplan of guest presentations to the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities 
Advisory Committee (BPC) to present on projects addressing bicycle and pedestrian safety and 
improvements in Monterey County. She noted that in order for an item to be added to an 
agenda, it must have consensus among Committee members. 
 
Wegenstein/Petersen /unanimous 
Committee member Martin Wegenstein motioned to consider a training and presentation of 
Chapter 1000 of the Highway Design Manual and was seconded by committee member Eric 
Petersen. 
 
Petersen/Johnson /unanimous 
Committee member Eric Petersen motioned to consider a consent agenda item with an update 

on the status of the California vehicle codes ride to the right law and the motion was seconded 

by committee member DL Johnson. 

Petersen/Pinet 
Opposed Martin Wegenstein 
Committee member Eric Petersen motioned to consider an agenda on how public agencies are 
preparing for e‐bikes and trail etiquette and the motion was seconded by committee member 
Celine Pinet. 
 
In conclusion Ms. Strause noted that the bicycle race information in Sand City can be 
announcement from organizer during the announcements and comments agenda item. She also 
noted that Transportation Agency staff will invite the Caltrans District 5 Bicycle Coordinator to 
introduce themselves and ask them to participate on the committee. 

   

7.  ANNOUNCEMENTS AND/OR COMMENTS 

  Committee member Grant Leonard announced that he has been on the committee going on 
two‐years and mentioned that this will be his last committee meeting. Committee members 
thanked him and wished him the best of luck. 
 
Committee member Martin Wegenstein announced that the County has put together a project 
plan for the Carmel Valley Road project section. They will submit a Caltrans Cycle 6 Active 
Transportation grant to widen that section and to add a Class II bicycle path. 

8.  ADJOURNMENT 
  Chair Novo adjourned the meeting at 7:44 p.m. 

 

Page 10 of 42



Agenda I tem 3.2

     
TRANSPORTATI ON AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

Memorandum
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili"es Advisory Commi%ee
From: Janneke Strause, Transporta"on Planner
Mee
ng Date: August 3, 2022
Subject: California Vehicle Code 21202 Report

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
RECEIVE a report on California Vehicle Code 21202.

SUMMARY:
On June 1, 2022, the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili"es Commi%ee unanimously approved a mo"on reques"ng
Transporta"on Agency staff to provide an update on “the status of the California vehicle codes ride to the right law.”
This report outlines staff’s findings in accordance with that request.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
No financial impact.

DISCUSSION:
On June 1, 2022, the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili"es Commi%ee unanimously approved a mo"on reques"ng
Transporta"on Agency staff to provide an update on “the status of the California vehicle codes ride to the right law.”
The “ride to the right law” is in reference to California Vehicle Code 21202.
 
California Vehicle Code 21202 under Ar"cle 4. Opera"on of Bicycles states,

“(a) Any person opera"ng a bicycle upon a roadway at a speed less than the normal speed of traffic moving in
the same direc"on at that "me shall ride as close as prac"cable to the right-hand curb or edge of the roadway
except under any of the following situa"ons:

(1) When overtaking and passing another bicycle or vehicle proceeding in the same direc"on.
(2) When preparing for a le@ turn at an intersec"on or into a private road or driveway.
(3) When reasonably necessary to avoid condi"ons (including, but not limited to, fixed or moving objects,
vehicles, bicycles, pedestrians, animals, surface hazards, or substandard width lanes) that make it unsafe
to con"nue along the right-hand curb or edge, subject to the provisions of Sec"on 21656. For purposes
of this sec"on, a “substandard width lane” is a lane that is too narrow for a bicycle and a vehicle to travel
safely side by side within the lane.
(4) When approaching a place where a right turn is authorized.

(b) Any person opera"ng a bicycle upon a roadway of a highway, which highway carries traffic in one direc"on
only and has two or more marked traffic lanes, may ride as near the le@-hand curb or edge of that roadway as
prac"cable.”

 
Effec"ve March 30, 2021, Caltrans has made edits, referred to as Revision 6, to the 2014 California Manual on
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD), to provide uniform standards and specifica"ons for all official traffic

Page 11 of 42



control devices in California. Revised design specifica"ons that relate to CVC 21202 are in Part 9: Traffic Control for
Bicycle Facili"es sec"ons 9C.04 Markings for Bicycle Lanes (page 1383) and 9C.07 Shared Lane Markings (page
1387).
 
Revision 6, 2014 CA MUTCD Part 9 is linked for reference.

ATTACHMENTS:

CVC 21202

Page 12 of 42

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/EV6tuKr9fb9MlKyv6LLne80BlwYOgRaOLvR4eV1Ui_j3NA?e=9iES3r


State of California

VEHICLE CODE

Section  21202

21202. (a)  Any person operating a bicycle upon a roadway at a speed less than the
normal speed of traffic moving in the same direction at that time shall ride as close
as practicable to the right-hand curb or edge of the roadway except under any of the
following situations:

(1)  When overtaking and passing another bicycle or vehicle proceeding in the
same direction.

(2)  When preparing for a left turn at an intersection or into a private road or
driveway.

(3)  When reasonably necessary to avoid conditions (including, but not limited to,
fixed or moving objects, vehicles, bicycles, pedestrians, animals, surface hazards, or
substandard width lanes) that make it unsafe to continue along the right-hand curb or
edge, subject to the provisions of Section 21656. For purposes of this section, a
“substandard width lane” is a lane that is too narrow for a bicycle and a vehicle to
travel safely side by side within the lane.

(4)  When approaching a place where a right turn is authorized.
(b)  Any person operating a bicycle upon a roadway of a highway, which highway

carries traffic in one direction only and has two or more marked traffic lanes, may
ride as near the left-hand curb or edge of that roadway as practicable.

(Amended by Stats. 1996, Ch. 674, Sec. 4.  Effective January 1, 1997.)

Page 13 of 42



Agenda I tem 3.3

     
TRANSPORTATI ON AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

Memorandum
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili!es Advisory Commi$ee
From: Alissa Guther, Assistant Transporta!on Planner
Mee
ng Date: August 3, 2022
Subject: Ac
ve Transporta
on Support Program Applica
on Review

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
APPROVE applica!on for Ac!ve Transporta!on Support Grant funds for Na!vidad Hospital to receive 2 bike racks
and 1 bike locker.

SUMMARY:
Approval by the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili!es Advisory Commi$ee is required for applicants to the Ac!ve
Transporta!on Support Program to be awarded grant funding.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The cost is es!mated at $3,000 for one (1) bike locker, and $1,100 for two (2) bike racks. The recommended ac!on
would allocate $4,100 of the $30,000 funding available this fiscal year. 

DISCUSSION:
This applica!on is the first for the new Ac!ve Transporta!on Support Grant program. The original request from
Na!vidad Hospital for two bike lockers and two bike racks would use almost 24% of the funding for the year. The
applica!on specifies that bike racks would be preferable to bike lockers, so staff recommends gran!ng only one bicycle
locker and two bike racks, using 13% of the year's funding, so as to preserve funds for the rest of the fiscal year for
other recipients. 

WEB ATTACHMENTS:
Na!vidad Hospital Applica!on

Page 14 of 42

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/EWctde1wNPJMiSNIk5Ex4hABhXZ_lvaR5VDNFZFKKfrjkg?e=48waDE


Agenda I tem 4.

     
TRANSPORTATI ON AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

Memorandum
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili!es Advisory Commi$ee
From: Janneke Strause, Transporta!on Planner
Mee
ng Date: August 3, 2022
Subject: Caltrans District 5 Bicycle Coordinator

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
RECEIVE an introduc!on to the new Caltrans District 5 Bicycle Coordinator. 

SUMMARY:
At the June 2022 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili!es Advisory Commi$ee mee!ng, Commi$ee members requested
Transporta!on Agency staff to invite the new Caltrans District 5 Bicycle Coordinator to a future mee!ng. The Senior
Planner responsible for Complete Streets at the Caltrans District 5 office is Rawan Al-Jamal and she will discuss the
Complete Streets Ac!on Plan released in July 2022.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
No direct financial impact, however the new Caltrans Complete Streets Ac!on Plan could help facilitate bicycle and
pedestrian improvements along State facili!es in Monterey County.

DISCUSSION:
Rawan Al-Jamal is the Branch Chief for Equity, Climate Change & Complete Streets at the Caltrans District 5 office. She
is the Senior Planner responsible for Complete Streets. Al-Jamal will discuss the Complete Streets Ac!on Plan
released in July 2022 as well as the outlook for implemen!ng bicycle and pedestrian projects on roadways within the
Caltrans jurisdic!on. 

The Complete Streets Ac!on Plan is a coordinated effort led by the Director’s Office of Sustainability, in partnership
with Caltrans Headquarters Divisions and Districts. The purpose of the Complete Streets Ac!on Plan is to iden!fy key
high-priority efforts needed to implement the new Director’s Policy for Complete Streets (DP-37) over the next two
years.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Caltrans Complete Streets Ac!on Plan - July 2022

Page 15 of 42



COMPLETE 
STREETS

ACTION PLAN 2022-23

Page 16 of 42



FROM THE DIRECTOR

Complete streets continue to 
be a top priority for Caltrans. 
Since the release of our first 
complete streets policy in 
2008, much has changed in 
our state — climate impacts 
have worsened, housing and 
transportation costs continue 

to rise, and racial and social disparities remain. For 
these reasons, we are working as a Department to 
shift our vehicle-centered focus of transportation 
planning and project development toward a 
human-centered approach. Complete streets serve 
as a key approach to facilitating the sustainable and 
equitable mobility of people on and across the State 
Highway System.

As a Department, we recognize that investments 
in walking, biking, transit, and passenger rail 
can produce meaningful and transformative 
projects that can help to address legacy impacts 
on underserved communities that have been 
historically segmented and harmed by our state’s 
transportation network. In California, many Caltrans-
owned and operated highways serve as main streets 
for communities. For this reason, Caltrans’ complete 
streets work is imperative to ensuring accessible, 
connected transportation options for travelers of all 
ages and abilities.

We also recognize that California is an extremely 
diverse state, and the solutions in one District or 
region can be vastly different than those in another. 
As a part of our complete streets work, we are 
committed to partnering with communities and 
local agencies to provide context-sensitive solutions, 
so that Caltrans complete streets projects can be 
attuned to community needs. 

In late 2021, we solidified this commitment  through 
the Director’s Policy on Complete Streets (DP-37). 
This policy requires all Caltrans projects  to provide 
comfortable, convenient, and connected complete 
streets facilities for people walking, biking, and 
taking transit, unless an exception is documented 
and approved. As a part of  the rollout of DP-37, 
Caltrans committed to creating a new, standalone 
biennial Complete Streets Action Plan with 
Headquarters Divisions and Districts. The Action Plan 
will identify and track implementation of key high-
priority actions needed to fully implement the new 
policy over the next two years. 

Not only will these actions help to implement DP-37 
but they will also support the goals of our  2020-2024 
Caltrans Strategic Plan — to lead climate action, 
enhance multimodal transportation, and advance 
equity and livability in all communities.

We will continue to update this plan as we identify 
further priorities and additional implementation 
opportunities in the future. In the meantime, we are 
pleased to share with you the 2022-2023 Complete 
Streets Action Plan. 

Sincerely, 

Tony Tavares, 
Director

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-232
Page 17 of 42



INTRODUCTION 

The Complete Streets Action Plan (CSAP) is a 
coordinated effort led by the Director’s Office 
of Sustainability , in partnership with Caltrans 
Headquarters (HQ) Divisions and Districts. The 
purpose of the CASP is to identify key high-priority 
efforts needed to implement the new Director’s 
Policy for Complete Streets (DP-37) over the next 
two years.  

Key Changes in Director’s Policy  
for Complete Streets (DP-37)

Elevated to Director's Policy

Requires District Director approval on 
any non-exempt capital or maintenance 
projects that do not include complete 
streets

Increased commitment to transit and rail

Expanded roles and responsibilities  
for implementation of the policy

Released in late 2021, DP-37 directs all transportation 
projects funded or overseen by Caltrans to provide 
comfortable, convenient, and connected complete 
streets facilities for people walking, biking, and 
taking transit or passenger rail, unless an exception 
is documented and approved. An implementation 
memo accompanying DP-37 identified six actions 
that the Department would take to immediately 
begin implementing the new policy. Acknowledging 
that this was not an exhaustive list, one of the six 
actions identified was that the development of a new, 
standalone Complete Streets Action Plan to identify 
additional actions beyond those identified within the 
memo that are needed to fully implement DP-37. 

The CSAP will track actions that fall within the 
January 2022 to December 2023 timeframe and 
will be updated on a biennial basis. Actions that list 
completion dates prior to the release of this plan 
indicate completion of that action in the month 
listed, and further details on completed actions will 
be featured in quarterly public progress reports.  

The CSAP is divided into six categories:  

•	 Policy & Procedures 

•	 Standards and Guidance  

•	 Funding and Projects  

•	 Data Collection and Evaluation  

•	 Training, Communication & Promotion  

•	 Planning & Research 

The tables contained in the plan outline each 
category of actions and contain tasks; descriptions; 
deliverables; completion dates; and lead and 
supporting divisions, districts and stakeholders.  

The Director’s Office of Sustainability (DOS) 
collaborated with the following divisions to develop 
the CSAP:  

•	 Division of Design (DoD) 

•	 Division of Local Assistance (DLA) 

•	 Division of Maintenance (DoM) 

•	 Division of Rail & Mass Transportation (DRMT) 

•	 Divisions of Transportation Planning (DOTP) 

•	 Division of Traffic Operations (DTO) 

•	 Division of Safety Programs  

DOS also consulted all Caltrans Districts, and for the 
first time, the CSAP includes committed actions from 
all 12 Caltrans districts.  

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-233
Page 18 of 42



The actions in the CSAP are identified, approved, 
and monitored through the following process:  

1.	 Complete Streets Division Chief Steering 
Committee (CSDCSC) identified subject-matter 
experts (SMEs) from all participating Divisions to 
serve as main point-of-contact for this effort 

2.	 DOS staff held one-on-one meetings with all SMEs, 
made targeted presentations to key committees, 
and circulated a survey to internal and external 
stakeholders to identify actions for inclusion within 
the plan  

3.	 Actions were refined by DOS to capture highest-
priority actions for implementation of DP-37 to be 
included within the plan 

4.	 Draft action list was reviewed and approved by 
the CSDCSC, who is responsible for oversight of 
the plan, including directing staff to implement 
actions, reporting progress to executive 
management, and approving significant new 
actions and updates to actions; additional 
executive management review included the 
Caltrans Executive Board.  

5.	 DOS will track progress of actions in the plan 
through coordination with SMEs and the 
publication of quarterly status reports. All quarterly 
reports will be published on the DOS website  
upon completion. 

Director’s Office of Sustainability  
CSAP Contacts: 

Tony Dang, AICP 
Deputy Director of Sustainability 

Anika Jesi 
Senior Transportation Planner

Ali Doerr Westbrook 
Associate Transportation Planner

Shelby McMichael 
Associate Governmental Program Analyst

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-234
Page 19 of 42



SUMMARY OF ACTIONS 

DATA COLLECTION  
& EVALUATION

1.1
Develop evaluation framework to assess active transportation project performance and 
co-benefits 

1.2 Develop statewide active transportation count guidance and database (Phase 1) 

1.3 
Quantify and identify procurement pathways for specialized equipment needed to 
maintain complete streets 

1.4 Develop a Statewide Caltrans Active Transportation Census Program 

1.5 
Evaluate challenges local agencies face when developing active transportation 
projects on the SHS 

1.6 Expand District 4 inventory of complete streets assets 

1.7 Evaluate active transportation needs for development of District 5 SHOPP projects 

1.8 Install Cameras for multimodal data collection in District 10 

1.9 
Develop a GIS database to track and share complete streets Minor, SHOPP, and HM 
projects in District 11 

1.10 Conduct Pedestrian and Bicycle Count Data Collection Pilot in District 12 

FUNDING & PROJECTS 

2.1 Streamline and consolidate application for transit formula funding 

2.2 Develop Active Transportation Benefit-Cost Tool

2.3 Launch Bicyclist Systemic Safety Improvement Program 

2.4 Implement and evaluate HM-4 Safety Pilot 

2.5 Develop a statewide Caltrans active transportation project development database 

2.6 
Identify key functional areas in need of a dedicated complete streets units/office and 
resource accordingly 

2.7 
Develop consolidated list of active transportation and related transit/first-last mile 
funding opportunities in District 9 

2.8 Develop prioritized list of complete streets LBNs SHOPP projects	

2.9 Develop funding target for percentage of Minor B budget dedicated to complete streets

POLICY & PROCEDURES

3.1 
Evaluate existing complete streets maintenance equipment policies and develop 
recommendations to update policies to align with DP-37 

3.2 Develop process for including complete streets in HM projects 

3.3 Evaluate success of CSTF in incorporating complete streets elements into HM projects 

3.4 Develop statewide policy for bicyclist access through work zones 

3.5 Establish District 4 Office of Transit and Active Transportation 

3.6 Develop a District 6 complete streets roles and responsibilities memorandum 

3.7 Update District 8 Directive on Community Engagement 

3.8 Develop Active Transportation Technical Team (AT3) in District 11 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-235
Page 20 of 42



SUMMARY OF ACTIONS 

STANDARDS & GUIDANCE

4.1 
Support transit agencies through rollout of real-time GTFS and contactless payments 
software and hardware 

4.2 
Revise standards and guidance for traffic signal operations control strategies for bicycles, 
pedestrians, and transit 

4.3 Develop pedestrian safety countermeasures guidance 

4.4 Integrate AB 43 in California MUTCD 

4.5 Develop contextual guidance for walking, biking and transit facilities 

4.6 Develop traffic calming design guidance (Phase II) 

4.7 Update DIB-89 Separated Bikeway Guidance 

4.8 Update bridge design guidance to support walking, biking, and transit 

4.9 Develop Complete Streets Prioritization Strategy 

4.10 Develop active transportation guidance for corridor planning 

4.11 Develop Quick Build Guidance for District 8 

4.12
Disseminate complete streets and transit design guidelines to local and regional transit 
operators, cities, and counties across District 9 

TRAINING, 
COMMUNICATION  
& PROMOTION

5.1 Rollout a Safety, Equity, and Climate Action Roadshow 

5.2 
Develop training and guidance for District Maintenance Engineers and Complete Streets 
Coordinators on the CSTF 

5.3 Launch Complete Streets Hub to facilitate cross-functional collaboration 

5.4 Develop training for CSDD in District 2 

5.5 Establish a District 1 PBAC 

5.6 Create a District 7 Complete Streets TAC 

5.7 Develop a District 7 newsletter for the Office of Complete Streets and Climate Change 

5.8 Deliver training on Caltrans Complete Streets Toolbox in District 7 

5.9 Convene the Central Coast Coalition on DP-37 

5.10 Establish a District BPAC 

PLANNING & RESEARCH 
6.1 Develop District 4 Transit Plan 

6.2 Freeway Ramp Active Mobility Enhancement Study (FRAMES)

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-236
Page 21 of 42



ACTIONS TIMELINE

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-237
Page 22 of 42



ACTIONS TIMELINE

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-238
Page 23 of 42



DATA COLLECTION & EVALUATION

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

1.1 

Develop evaluation 
framework to assess active 
transportation project 
performance and  
co-benefits

Develop an evaluation framework that describes 
active transportation project performance metrics, 
data collection methods for each metric, and 
evaluation procedures and analysis that can 
show realized project benefits (qualitative and 
quantitative) on active transportation projects. This is 
part of a larger project that also includes technical 
assistance to agencies in collecting the data for the 
performance metrics identified in the framework. 

Evaluation Framework March 2023
HQ Local 

Assistance
–

1.2 

Develop statewide active 
transportation count 
guidance and database 
(Phase 1)

Develop a consistent count methodology to be used 
statewide for the collection of active transportation 
counts. 

This is one aspect of a larger project with Phase 2  
focused on development of a statewide count 
database, to serve as a storing site for all active 
transportation counts conducted statewide. Phase 2 
is expected to be completed by December 2025.

Statewide Active 
Transportation Count 
Methodology Guidance

December 2023
HQ Local 

Assistance
HQ Traffic 

Operations

1.3 

Quantify and identify 
procurement pathways 
for specialized equipment 
needed to maintain 
complete streets 

To address the potential need for additional and/or 
specialized equipment to maintain complete streets 
facilities, initiate a Caltrans District-based process to 
identify short- and long-term maintenance equipment 
needs for the maintenance of walking, biking, and 
transit facilities. 

This effort will result in the delivery of a needs 
assessment to the Division Chief of Maintenance 
to inform the development of a BCP to procure 
equipment as needed. The needs assessment will 
include: 

1. Current & future equipment needs (sweepers,
grinders, etc.)

2. Cost and preferred procurement option (purchase
outright, lease, on-call service contract, District
share, etc.)

Needs assessment 
memorandum

July 2022 HQ Maintenance HQ Sustainability

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-239
Page 24 of 42



DATA COLLECTION & EVALUATION

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

1.4 

Develop a Statewide 
Caltrans Active 
Transportation Census 
Program

Develop a statewide Caltrans active transportation 
census program to gather bicycle and pedestrian 
count and volume data on the SHS for project scoping 
and performance monitoring purposes. 

While this is a multi-year effort, tasks in the 22/23 CY 
include development of a cross-Division working 
group to support delivery of program; developing 
an inventory and map of existing bicycle/pedestrian 
count stations; developing a prioritized list of active 
transportation census and “big data” information 
needs to drive statistical design; revising current 
performance measures (# of bicycle/pedestrian 
count stations) to incentivize cost effective collection 
of quality controlled data; and developing a work 
plan and funding request to expand D1 active 
transportation census statistical network design pilot 
statewide.  

Establishment of 
workgroup; 

Inventory and map of 
count stations; 

Prioritized list of data 
needs; Revisions to existing 
performance measure; 

Workplan and funding 
request for D1 pilot 
expansion

December 2023
HQ Traffic 

Operations
D1 

1.5

Evaluate challenges 
local agencies face 
when developing active 
transportation projects on or 
crossing the SHS

Conduct key informant interviews and distribute 
survey to local agencies to identify challenges and 
determine strategies for streamlining the internal 
design oversight/encroachment permit process to 
improve ease at which local agencies can build 
active transportation projects on or across the SHS. 

Prepare report detailing survey results and interview 
findings. 

Report to Caltrans 
Executive Board detailing 
survey results and 
interview findings.

April 2022 HQ Design 

HQ Traffic 
Operations

District Permit 
Offices

1.6

Expand District 4 inventory of 
complete streets assets 

Create an accessible inventory of assets (originally 
developed as part of the CAT Plan effort) beyond the 
ATAIP. 

Conduct inventory of additional assets including 
pedestrian and bicycle overcrossings and 
undercrossings, transit lanes, and other transit-
supportive infrastructure. Performance measures may 
include, but are not limited to, implementation of the 
D4 Bike and Pedestrian Plans and transit performance 
on the SHS.

District 4 asset inventory 
map for complete streets;

Complete streets 
performance reporting 
in the District 4 Complete 
Streets Newsletter

Dec 2022 D4 HQ DOTP

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2310
Page 25 of 42



DATA COLLECTION & EVALUATION

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

1.7

Evaluate active 
transportation needs for 
development of District 5 
SHOPP projects 

Conduct an additional assessment of the LBNs output 
data that was developed in the District CAT plan. The 
plan identified needs but did not suggest approaches 
to address the identified needs. This activity will 
provide the next step toward implementation of 
the plan and will include an analysis to refine LBNs 
priorities at a higher level of precision compared to 
the current data prioritization structure. This could 
inform decision-making in identifying potential 
complete streets standalone SHOPP projects.

Prioritized list of LBNs; 

Listing of concepts 
proposed for addressing 
identified need

Dec 2022 D5 –

1.8

Install Cameras for 
multimodal data collection 
in District 10

Install MioVision Cameras at selected on/off ramp 
locations on SR-99 to collect bike/pedestrian/vehicle 
counts

Installation of data 
collection equipment

June 2023 D10 –

1.9

Develop a GIS database to 
track and share complete 
streets Minor, SHOPP and HM 
projects in District 11

Develop GIS layer database to track completed and 
in-progress Minor B, SHOPP Asset Management, and 
HM complete streets projects, sortable by FY. 

Database will be available to share with external 
partners and will help monitor progress on District’s 
Maintenance-based projects target to devote 10-15% 
of the Minor B budget to complete streets projects.  

GIS database Dec 2022 D11 D11

1.10

Conduct Pedestrian 
and Bicycle Count Data 
Collection Pilot in District 12

In collaboration with HQ Traffic Operations, integrate 
72 cameras into pipeline projects on active 
transportation-significant corridors within the District. 
Counts will help inform future interventions along the 
corridors and those to explore in the rest of the District.

Installation of data 
collection equipment

June 2022 D12 –

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2311
Page 26 of 42



FUNDING & PROJECTS

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

2.1

Streamline and consolidate 
application for transit 
formula funding 

Develop a consolidated application for the formula 
transit funding programs (FTA 5310, FTA 5311, and 
LCTOP) to make agencies' work in applying for 
funding easier and more streamlined.

Consolidated funding 
application

April 2022
HQ Rail & Mass 
Transportation

–

2.2

Develop Active 
Transportation Benefit-Cost 
Tool

Develop a research-based web-tool to evaluate the 
costs and benefits of active transportation projects as 
part of project evaluation processes.

Active Transportation 
Benefit-Cost Tool

July 2022
HQ Local 

Assistance
–

2.3

Launch Bicyclist Systemic 
Safety Improvement Program

Launch the first round of the Bicyclist Systemic Safety 
Improvement Program, which will identify and address 
locations that may experience crashes based on 
specific roadway features that are associated with a 
particular crash type.

The program will proactively address bicyclist-
related crashes on the SHS. The long-term goal of 
the program is to substantially reduce pedestrian 
fatalities and serious injuries by providing blanket 
improvements that can be implemented at sites 
throughout the roadway network.

HQ memo to Districts 
oultining process 

Completed investigation 
reports and 
recommendations for 
safety improvements

June 2023
HQ Safety 
Programs

HQ Traffic 
Operations 

HQ Planning 
Districts

2.4

Implement and evaluate 
Highway Maintenance-4 
(HM-4) Safety Pilot

Implement pedestrian safety enhancements in 1607 
locations across the state. Improvements will include 
enhanced crosswalks at signalized, stop-controlled, 
or uncontrolled intersection,  midblock crosswalks, 
slip ramps, roundabouts, and upgrading or installing 
pedestrian warning signs as needed.

Pilot Program; 1607 
locations enhanced for 
pedestrian safety for FY 
21-22 and FY 22-23

June 2023
HQ Safety 
Programs

HQ Maintenance 

Districts

2.5

Develop a statewide 
Caltrans active 
transportation project 
development database

Create a database of active transportation 
projects on the state highway system that are 
ready for funding by phase (environmental, design, 
construction). Coordinate with Caltrans districts 
to populate the database and expedite active 
transportation projects ability to compete for non-
SHOPP state funding and federal discretionary 
funding sources, such as RAISE, ITIP, ATP, MEGA, INFRA. 

Database of Caltrans 
active transportation 
project pipeline

September 2022
HQ Transportation 

Planning
Districts

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2312
Page 27 of 42



FUNDING & PROJECTS

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

2.6

Identify key functional areas 
in need of a dedicated 
complete streets unit/office 
and resource accordingly

Designate dedicated offices of complete streets 
in key functional areas such as Maintenance, 
Traffic Operations, or others that would focus on 
policy, procedures, guidance, tools, and training to 
effectively implement complete streets and active 
transportation on the state highway system. 

Develop proposal(s) for 
redirection or acquisition 
of new staffing resources

December 2023 HQ Sustainability

HQ Maintenance 

HQ Traffic 
Operations

2.7

Develop consolidated list of 
active transportation and 
related transit/first-last mile 
funding opportunities in 
District 9

This task will provide a foundation for a strategic, 
system wide approach toward funding active 
transportation projects. Both internal and external 
stakeholder will be able to see the full suite of 
available funding opportunities such that project-
level funding strategies can be developed. 

Consolidated funding 
opportunity list.

August, 2022 D9
HQ DRMT

HQ DOTP

2.8

Develop prioritized list of 
complete streets LBNs SHOPP 
projects

Utilize LBNs from the District CAT Plan to develop a 
prioritized list of projects that address multimodal 
gaps and will be funded via the SHOPP. Prioritized list 
will identify coordination needs with local partners on 
projects that overlap or interact with local roads.

Prioritized list of LBNs for 
SHOPP funding

June 2023 D3

HQ DOTP 

HQ DMRT 

D3

2.9

Develop funding target 
for percentage of Minor 
B budget dedicated to 
complete streets

Develop a District Maintenance-based project target 
to devote 10-15% of the Minor B budget to complete 
streets projects beginning in the 21/22 FY and 
continuing on an ongoing basis.

Funding target January 2022 D11 –

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2313
Page 28 of 42



POLICY & PROCEDURES

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

3.1

Develop recommendations 
to update existing complete 
streets maintenance 
equipment policies to align 
with DP-37

Review existing CS maintenance equipment policies 
and identify the areas that need to be edited/
updated in order to improve the ease at which 
additional and/or specialized equipment can be 
procured for the maintenance of complete streets. 

Recommendations Report July 2022 HQ Maintenance Districts

3.2

Develop process for 
including complete streets 
in Highway Maintenance 
(HM) projects

Develop a process for tracking the inclusion of 
complete streets elements in major Highway 
Maintenance (HM) pavement and bridge projects. 
Process will include the development of the Complete 
Streets Tracking Form (CSTF) to track inclusion of 
complete streets elements in HM projects, with District 
Directors as the final signatory for any projects that 
do not incorporate complete streets elements, as well 
as the establishment of a memo to codify this new 
process into Caltrans internal procedures. 

Release of CSTF as 
requirement for HM 
projects to proceed to 
Ready to List status;

Memo codifying new 
process in Caltrans 
procedures 

March 2022 HQ Maintenance

HQ Sustainability 

HQ Design 

Districts

3.3 

Evaluate success of 
Complete Streets Tracking 
Form (CSTF) in incorporating 
complete streets elements 
into HM projects

Evaluate initial performance of CSTF for incorporating 
complete streets elements into rountine pavement 
and bridge maintenance projects. Evaluation will be 
conducted through the launch of a Maintenance-
led cross-functional HQ/District committee to fully 
evaluate CSTF functionality, including identifying 
missed opportunities with CSTF implementation and 
developing recommendations for updating CSTF 
and accompanying guidance as needed to improve 
process in future cycles. 

Recommendations report 
on improvements for 
future HM cycles

June 2023

HQ Maintenance 

HQ Sustainability 

HQ Design

–

3.4 

Develop statewide policy 
for bicyclist access through 
work zones

Update statewide policy and guidance for 
bicycle access through work zones (construction, 
maintenance, or encroachment permits) on the state 
highway system. Develop new specifications and 
plans for temporary bicycle access routes.

New Traffic Operations 
Policy Directive (TODP); 
New specifications, plans 
and updated guidance 
(Traffic Management Plan 
Guidelines)

December 2022
HQ Traffic 

Operations

HQ Design 

HQ Construction 

HQ Maintenance 

HQ Safety 
Programs

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2314
Page 29 of 42



TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

3.5 

Establish District 4 Office 
of Transit & Active 
Transportation

The D4 Division of Transportation Planning and Local 
Assistance is consolidating and expanding its transit 
and active transportation functions to build up the 
District’s complete streets program and strengthen 
coordination with other Divisions and HQ. 

The office will include new and refocused functions 
and positions on complete streets performance, PID 
coordination, and expanded transit planning and 
coordination.

Updated organization 
chart; Performance 
Objectives for the District 
4 Office of Transit & Active 
Transportation

Sept 2022 D4 –

3.6 

Develop a District 6 
complete streets roles & 
responsibilities memorandum

Develop a memorandum to further define within the 
district how the Divisions of Planning, Asset/Program 
and Project Management, Design and Maintenance 
and Operations will work collaboratively with each 
other to ensure a strategic approach and well-
coordinated complete streets program.

Roles and Responsibilities 
Memorandum

Jul 2022 D6 –

3.7 

Update District 8 Directive on 
Community Engagement

Update District 8 Directive on Community Engagement 
(D08-16-01 effective 10/13/2016) to incorporate 
community outreach best practices in all project 
phases. The current D08-16-01 requires updating to 
reflect the new DP-37 and better align with the District's 
Equity efforts. Updating this District Directive will allow 
expansion of District leadership in promoting multi-
modal solutions, implementing active transportation, 
and delivering meaningful complete streets that 
enhance the livability of local communities.

Updated D8 Directive on 
Community Engagement 
(D08-16-02)

Jun 2023 D8 –

3.8 

Develop Active 
Transportation Technical 
Team (AT3) in District 11

Develop and pilot a 3-pronged team made up of 
Planning, Design and Traffic Operations subject-
matter experts to serve as a special advisory 
committee for any Caltrans or local complete streets 
projects that require additional review or decision-
making, Also serve as a decision-advisory board for 
active transportation/complete streets issues within 
the District.

Team charter & rollout Sept 2022 D11 D11

POLICY & PROCEDURES

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2315
Page 30 of 42



STANDARDS & GUIDANCE

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

4.1 

Support transit agencies 
through rollout of real-
time GTFS and contactless 
payments software and 
hardware 

Provide procurement options for General Transit 
Feed Specification (GTFS) Real Time and contactless 
payment units and related software services to 
transit agencies in order to facilitate the transition 
to seamless payments and travel in California. The 
GTFS-Real Time units and related software services will 
provide the real-time location of buses compared to 
schedules, while payment units and related software 
services will allow payment with a debit card, credit 
card or mobile wallet. The overall goal of this effort 
is to equip every vehicle in revenue service in the 
state with these payment and GTFS-Real Time units 
to promote seamless travel across transit districts 
throughout California. 

Hardware and software 
installation (in 22/23 CY, at 
least 20 agencies live and 
transmitting data). 

December 2023
HQ Rail & Mass 
Transportation

Cal-ITP

4.2 

Revise standards and 
guidance for traffic signal 
operations control strategies 
for bicycles, pedestrians, 
and transit

Update the Traffic Signal Operations Manual, Traffic 
Signal Business Plan, CAMUTCD Chapter 4 - Highway 
Traffic Signals, and related policies to incorporate 
recent guidance from NCHRP on traffic signal control 
operations strategies for pedestrians and bicyclists. 
The NCHRP guidance comes from 3 separate reports 
published in 2022.

Revised versions of all 
documents listed in the 
action item

June 2023
HQ Traffic 

Operations
–

4.3 

Develop pedestrian safety 
countermeasures guidance

Establish a policy and guidance for the use of proven 
safety countermeasures relating to pedestrians 
(pedestrian hybrid beacons, leading pedestrian 
intervals, and pedestrian walkways).

Three traffic safety 
bulletins for pedestrian 
safety countermeasures

July 2022
HQ Safety 
Programs

HQ Traffic 
Operations 

HQ Design 

HQ Transportation 
Planning 

HQ Sustainability

4.4 

Integrate AB 43 into 
California MUTCD

Implement AB 43, speed limit legislation, through 
updates to manuals, guidance, trainings and other 
documents, including updates to the California 
MUTCD to reflect requirements per the revised 
California Vehicle Code.

Updated California 
MUTCD; updates to other 
documents as needed

December 2022
HQ Safety 
Programs

HQ Design

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2316
Page 31 of 42



TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

4.5 

Develop contextual design 
guidance for walking, biking 
and transit facilities

Develop contextual guidance to set minimum 
expectations for complete streets facilities by place-
type and roadway context, such as speed and 
volume. Guidance will be patterned after the AASHTO 
Greenbook 7 and will replace the need to develop 
a design standard decision document (DSDD) for 
non-standard elements that meet any of the contexts 
outlined in this guidance document. Contextual 
guidance will also include design guidance on the 
use of reduced lane widths on complete streets 
projects.

Contextual guidance 
documents for bicycle, 
pedestrian and transit 
facilities

December 2022 HQ Design Districts

4.6 

Develop traffic calming 
design guidance (Phase II)

Develop traffic calming guidance, including specific 
design guidance on traffic calming elements that 
can be used to improve safety and comfort for those 
walking, biking and taking transit. Phase I of this effort 
included the release of a policy memo to address the 
benefit of various strategies for traffic calming on the 
state highway system.

Appropriate guidance 
documents (DIB, MUTCD, 
Stannard Plan/Spec, 
Operation analysis 
guidelines) owned by 
Design, Safety, and Traffic 
Operations; 

Revision of manuals 

June 2023 HQ Design 

HQ Safety 
Programs

HQ Traffic 
Operations

4.7 

Update DIB-89 Separated 
Bikeway Guidance

Update DIB-89, guidance on separated bicycle 
facilites to includes guidance on the role of the 
greater bikeway network in relation to separated 
bikeways, expanded guidance for separated bikeway 
design considerations, and clarification related to 
separated bikeway design criteria.

Release of DIB-89-02 January 2022 HQ Design –

4.8

Update bridge design 
guidance to support 
walking, biking, and transit

Modify bridge design guidance at three key points 
in the project development process to support the 
development of walking, biking and transit facilites 
on bridges. Additional language will be included at 
the planning phase, the bridge type selection phase 
(a meeting at the early design phase where the 
proposed bridge solution is approved), and the Bridge 
Design Academy (an introductory course for new 
employees).  

Revised bridge design 
guidance at planning, 
bridge type selection, and 
Bridge Design Academy 
phases. 

August 2022
HQ Engineering 

Services
HQ Design

STANDARDS & GUIDANCE

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2317
Page 32 of 42



STANDARDS & GUIDANCE

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

4.9

Develop Complete Streets 
Prioritization Strategy

Develop guidance to Districts on the prioritization 
of location-based needs identified within their 
Caltrans Active Transportation (CAT) Plans as well 
as guidance on how to incorporate recommended 
Tier 1 complete streets improvements from the plans 
into actual projects on the SHS. Guidance will also 
include direction on updating the plan (including 
frequency, etc.) This guidance will fulfill requirements 
of the federal Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 
(IIJA) Section 11206, which includes development 
of a complete streets prioritization plan with a list of 
complete streets projects.

Guidance with 
prioritization approach 
and strategy on CAT Plan 
updates

June 2023
HQ Transportation 

Planning

HQ Sustainability 

HQ Design 

HQ Asset 

Management 
Districts

4.10

Develop active 
transportation guidance for 
corridor planning

Develop active transportation "emphasis area" 
guidance to detail how to incorporate bicycle and 
pedestrian considerations into planning work for state 
highway corridors.

Active Transportation 
Emphasis Area Guidance

March 2022
HQ Transportation 

Planning
–

4.11

Develop Quick Build 
Guidance

"Develop District 8 Quick Build Active Transportation 
Guidance via State Transportation Innovation Council 
(STIC) grant. Delivery of 1 quick build pilot project will 
occur in year 2 of the STIC grant.  It is anticipated that 
District 8 quick build guidance will lay the groundwork 
for potential statewide guidance."

Quick Build Active 
Transportation Guidance

Dec 2023 D8
HQ Safety 
Programs

4.12

Disseminate complete street 
and transit design guidelines 
to local and regional 
transit operators, cities and 
counties across District 9 

In order to facilitate the incorporation of CS and 
transit-supportive design elements in off-system 
projects and in local site-plan designs that are 
in-review through the Local Development Review 
process, template examples of complete street 
and transit design guidelines will be collected from 
comparable rural regions and disseminated to 
relevant stakeholders across the District. 

Synthesis and 
dissemination of template 
examples of transit 
design guidelines from 
comparable rural regions

September, 2022 D9 –

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2318
Page 33 of 42



TRAINING, COMMUNICATION & PROMOTION

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

5.1

Rollout a Safety, Equity, & 
Climate Action Roadshow

Develop a training for project design engineers on 
employing design flexibility to meet Caltrans safety, 
equity, and climate action goals.

12 District Sessions August 2022 HQ Design –

5.2

Develop training and 
guidance for District 
Maintenance Engineers 
& Complete Streets 
Coordinators on the 
Complete Streets Tracking 
Form (CSTF)

Develop guidance on the process for incorporating 
complete streets into Highway Maintenance 
pavement & bridge jobs, including how to use the 
new CSTF to track inclusion of complete streets 
elements; deliver training to Caltrans District 
Maintenance Engineers and Complete Street 
Coordinators on new process. 

Rollout of finalized 
guidance document; 
delivery of training to 
District Maintenance 
Engineers & Complete 
Streets Coordinators

February 2022 HQ Maintenance HQ Design

5.3

Launch Complete Streets 
Hub to facilitate cross-
functional collaboration

Launch an internal website to serve as the central 
repository of Caltrans complete streets resources.

Live Internal Website January 2022 HQ Sustainability

HQ Design

HQ Transportation 
Planning

5.4

Develop District Training for 
Complete Streets Decision 
Document (CSDD)

Develop a 101 training for Project Initation Document 
(PID) staff focused on the new requirements in the 
CSDD following the release of DP-37. This training will 
address research and engagmement needed in the 
pre-PID and scoping phases, as well as procedures 
for the new requirements that CSDD be circulated 
to District Directors for any projects not including 
complete streets. The purpose of this training is to 
provide increased awareness surrounding these new 
policies and increase understanding of how they will 
impact staff's specific job functions. 

Rollout of 3-5 training 
sessions for district staff

September 2022 D2 –

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2319
Page 34 of 42



TRAINING, COMMUNICATION & PROMOTION

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

5.5

Establish a District 1 
Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Advisory Committee (PBAC)

Establish a PBAC in District 1 with the primary 
purpose of helping to ensure that planning, design, 
maintenance, and operations activities within the 
district meet the needs of local pedestrians and 
bicyclists. The PBAC will be comprised of local and 
regional agencies, transportation professionals, 
underserved community representatives, regional 
advocates, and community members and will 
be charged with a variety of tasks including 
monitoring implementation of DP-37 and complete 
streets activities at the district; providing input into 
plans and project initation documents to ensure 
bicycle and pedestrian needs are met; monitoring 
programs/projects for consistency with District Active 
Transportation Plan; etc. 

Approved charter 
outlining the roles and 
responsibilities of the 
advisory committee; hold 
at least one meeting in 
22/23

July 2022 D1 –

5.6

Create a District 7 Complete 
Streets Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC)

Establish a Complete Streets TAC with representative 
members from partner agencies, advocacy groups 
and community-based organizations in order to 
implement DP-37 requirements that the Department 
partner with local communities to ensure projects 
improve connectivity to existing and planned 
complete streets facilties. The Complete Streets TAC 
will advise the planning, design and maintenance of 
improvements that address mobility needs and further 
equitable outcomes for bicyclists, pedestrians and 
transit users traveling on and across state highways in 
District 7.

Recruitment and 
convening of a Complete 
Streets TAC

Sept 2022 D7 –

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2320
Page 35 of 42



TRAINING, COMMUNICATION & PROMOTION

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

5.7

Develop a District 7 
newsletter for the Office 
of Complete Streets and 
Climate Change 

Create an email newsletter for all District 7 staff to 
provide information on complete streets and climate 
change-related topics, such as May is Bike Month, 
upcoming local events, educational and training 
opportunities, bicycle commute subsidy information, 
partner agency news and resources. This newsletter 
aims to keep all staff aware of District goings-on, 
as well as to promote the Department's goals of 
safety, equity, and climate action by highlighting 
multimodality and sustainability. Newsletter expected 
every quarter or as needed.

Quarterly email 
newsletter; first issue 
release in March 2022 

Mar 2022 D7 –

5.8

Deliver District 7 training on 
Caltrans Complete Streets 
Toolbox

Deliver a Complete Streets Toolbox training to 
introduce complete streets concepts to District 7 staff. 
Training will be a collaboration with headquarters 
Division of Transportation Planning (DOTP) and will be 
rolled out as a two half-day training program.  

2-day training on March
15 & 17

Mar 2022 D7 –

5.9

Convene the Central Coast 
Coalition on DP-37

Host a workshop to provide a single and uniform 
forum for discussing DP-37 and next steps for 
implementing the policy. The workshop would provide 
a space to address frequently asked questions and 
concerns about DP-37 for District 5 partners.

Workshop minutes; 
Development of FAQ 
document 

Jun 2022 D5 –

5.10

Establish a District 10 Bicyclist 
and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee

Establish a Bicyclist and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee (BPAC) in District 10 with the primary 
purpose of ensuring active transportation gaps and 
barriers on, across, and near the SHS are identified 
and addressed with input from the public. The BPAC 
will be comprised of local and regional agencies, 
transportation professionals, advocacy groups, and 
other community members. The BPAC intends to 
utilize the D10 CAT Plan and the public's geographical 
knowledge to enhance active transportation in the 
region. 

PBAC charter; 
establishment of a PBAC 
website

Feb 2022 D10 D10 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2321
Page 36 of 42



PLANNING & RESEARCH

TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLE(S) COMPLETION DATE
DIVISION / 
DISTRICT

SUPPORTING 
DIVISIONS/
OFFICES/

DISTRICTS/
AGENCIES

6.1

Develop District 4 Transit Plan 

Identify and better understand how Caltrans 
can implement transit-supportive infrastructure 
improvements on the State Transportation Network 
within District 4. The Transit Plan would complement 
the District 4 Bike Plan and Pedestrian Plan to inform 
future investments in the SHOPP and other programs.

"Scope of work and 
executed contract for 
District 4 Transit Plan;

Early deliverables for 
Transit Plan through 
December 2023, 
including vision, goals 
and objectives, existing 
conditions, and toolbox of 
transit best practices”

Dec 2023 D4 
D4 

HQ DRMT, DOTP

6.2

Freeway Ramp Active 
Mobility Enhancement Study 
(FRAMES)

The Freeway Ramp Active Mobility Enhancement 
Study (FRAMES) will analyze freeway ramps to 
document need and develop solutions for improved 
safety by people walking and cycling at the junction 
with local arterial roadways. The technical study will 
utilize available data sets and existing conditions to 
advance the Caltrans District 12 Active Transportation 
Plan (D12 CAT Plan) which utilized public and 
stakeholder input to establish three tiers of priority 
improvement locations within Orange County.

Completed FRAMES Study Oct 2023 D12 –

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2322
Page 37 of 42



ACRONYMS

AASHTO 
American Association of State Highway and 
Transportation Officials 

AB Assembly Bill 

AM Asset Management 

AT Active Transportation 

ATAIP Active Transportation Asset Inventory Pilot

ATP Active Transportation Program 

BCP Budget Change Proposal 

CA MUTCD California Manuel on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 

CAT PLANS Caltrans Active Transportation Plans 

CS Complete Streets 

CSDD Complete Streets Decision Document 

CSTF Complete Streets Tracking Form 

CY Calendar Year 

D District

DIB Design Information Bulletin 

DOS Director’s Office of Sustainability

DOTP Division of Transportation Planning 

DP-37 Director’s Policy on Complete Streets 

DRMT Division of Rail and Mass Transit 

DSDD Design Standard Decision Document 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GIS Geographic Information Systems 

GTFS-RT General Transit Feed Specification-Real Time

HM Highway Maintenance 

HQ Headquarters 

IIJA Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 

INFRA Infrastructure for Rebuilding America Program

ITIP Interregional Transportation Improvement Program 

LBN Location Based Needs 

LCTOP Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

NCHRP National Cooperative Highway Research Program 

PID Project Initiation Document 

PM Project Management 

PPM Program and Project Management 

RAISE 
Rebuilding America Infrastructure with Sustainability 
and Equity Program  

SB Senate Bill 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection Program 

SHS State Highway System 

SR State Route 

STIC State Transportation Innovation Council 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 

TOPD Traffic Operations Policy Directive

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  •  COMPLETE STREETS ACTION PLAN 2022-2323
Page 38 of 42



Additional Questions?

Reach out to the CS Hub email  
at complete.streets@dot.ca.gov. 

© 2022 California Department of Transportation. All Rights Reserved.

Page 39 of 42



Agenda I tem 5.

     
TRANSPORTATI ON AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

Memorandum
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili!es Advisory Commi$ee
From: Janneke Strause, Transporta!on Planner
Mee
ng Date: August 3, 2022
Subject: Monterey County - Davis Road Bridge Project Update

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
RECEIVE update on Monterey County's Davis Road Bridge Replacement and Road Widening Project.  

SUMMARY:
The Davis Road Bridge Replacement and Road Widening Project consists of widening a key regional route that
connects the two largest popula!on centers in the County. Davis Road experiences daily conges!on and does not have
exis!ng bicycle facili!es. The Davis Road project creates an alterna!ve transporta!on link between the City of Salinas
and the City of Marina by widening the roadway and providing 8-foot bike lanes. The project also replaces a low-water
crossing with a bridge that provides an all-weather crossing to maintain traffic flow on an important mul!modal
corridor and allow for planned future rapid transit service. County staff will provide a status and schedule update on
the project to construct a new bridge over the low-water crossing.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The County is proposing to fund the bridge component with federal Highway Bridge Funds and county funds for the
local match.  The construc!on of the road widening por!on is par!ally unfunded due to the sunse<ng of the Fort Ord
Reuse Authority (FORA) and the loss of the FORA fees.  The County is ac!vely looking to fill a funding gap of
approximately $10 million. The overall project is es!mated at about $70 million, with the bridge component being
approximately 2/3 of the overall Project cost.
 
At the January 2021 TAMC Board Mee!ng, the Board authorized a request by the County of Monterey to program
Regional Surface Transporta!on Program fair share funds to the Davis Road Bridge Replacement and Road Widening
Project in the amount of $560,000. 

DISCUSSION:
The exis!ng Davis Road Bridge is located approximately 2 miles south of the City of Salinas. The exis!ng bridge is
typically closed from January to April due to high water levels in the Salinas River. The Preferred Project Alterna!ve
would demolish the exis!ng bridge and replace it with a new four-lane, high-level bridge capable of withstanding a
100-year flood. The replacement bridge would be open for year-round use. Also as part of the Project, Davis Road will
be widened from two lanes to four lanes for a distance of approximately 2.1 mi between Blanco Road on the north and
Reserva!on Road on the south. The road widening is designed to accommodate the an!cipated growth in traffic in the
Salinas-Marina Corridor.
 
The Project will replace the exis!ng low-water crossing over the Salinas River and widen Davis Road to four travel
lanes. The project also includes traffic signal upgrades at the intersec!on of Davis Road and Blanco Road, a new traffic

Page 40 of 42



signal at Davis Road and Hitchcock Road, a new roundabout at Davis Road and Reserva!on Road, and bicycle and
pedestrian infrastructure enhancements. 
 
Bicycle and pedestrian features of the project include implementa!on of a bike lane (Class I I ) for the en!re length of
Davis Road, including bike markings and intersec!on improvements to ease the movement of vehicles and bikes. The
project also proposes to control the access points onto Davis Road to minimize the mud-tracking on the shoulder that
results from agricultural vehicles/equipment movements. 
 
The project is in the final design, right-of-way acquisi!on and u!lity reloca!on phase. The County is ac!vely
nego!a!ng with a number of the property owners for acquisi!on of the easements necessary to construct the Project
while applying to grant opportuni!es to fund the construc!on phase.

ATTACHMENTS:

Project Loca!on Map

Page 41 of 42



AMBROSE DRIVE

City of Salinas

RESERVATION ROAD

BLANCO   ROAD

HITCHCOCK  ROAD
DAV

IS
   R

OAD

Salinas
River

FOSTER  ROAD

SOURCE: USGS 7.5-minute Topo Quad - Salinas, Calif. (1984).

I:\MOC0602\GIS\Maps\EIR-EA\Figure 1-1_Project Location-Vicinity Map.mxd (10/14/2014)

FIGURE 1-1

Davis Road Bridge Replacement
and Road Widening Project

Federal Project Number BRLS-5944 (068)
Monterey County, California

Project Location/Vicinity Map

LEGEND

Project Area

Monterey
Bay

Project Area

101

101

1

1

25

183

68

1
156

152

Salinas

Santa
Cruz

Monterey
Seaside

Hollister

Gilroy
Watsonville

Marina

Pacific
Grove

Prunedale

M O N T E R E Y

S A N
B E N I T O

S A N T A  C L A R AS A N T A  C R U Z

0 3.75 7.5

MILES

0 1000 2000

FEET

Page 42 of 42


	Meeting Agenda
	Draft June 1, 2022 Minutes
	California Vehicle Code 21202 Report
	Active Transportation Support Program Application Review
	Caltrans District 5 Bicycle Coordinator
	Monterey County - Davis Road Bridge Project Update

